_h_
HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Monday, 14 September 2015 6.30 p.m.
Civic Suite, Town Hall, Runcorn

Chief Executive

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Councillor Paul Nolan (Chairman)

Councillor Keith Morley (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor John Bradshaw

Councillor Arthur Cole

Councillor Ron Hignett

Councillor Stan Hill

Councillor Carol Plumpton Walsh

Councillor June Roberts

Councillor John Stockton

Councillor Dave Thompson

Councillor Kevan Wainwright

Councillor Bill Woolfall

Councillor Geoff Zygadllo

Please contact Ann Jones on 0151 511 8276 Ext. 16 8276 or
ann.jones@halton.gov.uk for further information.
The next meeting of the Committee is on Monday, 5 October 2015



ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH
IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Part |
ltem No.
1. MINUTES

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or Other Disclosable Interest
which they have in any item of business on the agenda, no later
than when that item is reached or as soon as the interest
becomes apparent and, with Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, to

leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting on the item.

3. PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE
COMMITTEE

4. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

Page No.

1-4

In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and

instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 1

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

At a meeting of the Development Control Committee on Monday, 3 August 2015 at The
Board Room - Municipal Building, Widnes

Present: Councillors Nolan (Chairman), Morley (Vice-Chairman), J. Bradshaw,
Cole, R. Hignett, S. Hill, C. Plumpton Walsh, June Roberts, J. Stockton,
Thompson, Woolfall and Zygadllo

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Wainwright
Absence declared on Council business: None
Officers present: A. Jones, J. Tully, M. Noone, A. Plant, G. Henry and J. Farmer

Also in attendance: Two members of the public

ITEMS DEALT WITH
UNDER DUTIES
EXERCISABLE BY THE COMMITTEE

Action
DEV1 MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 8 June 2015,
having been circulated, were taken as read and signed as a
correct record.

DEV2 PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE
COMMITTEE

The Committee considered the following applications
for planning permission and, in accordance with its powers
and duties, made the decisions described below.

DEV3 - 15/00263/FUL - PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT OF 79 NO.
DWELLINGS TOGETHER WITH ASSOCIATED HIGHWAY
AND LANDSCAPING INFRASTRUCTURE ON LAND TO
THE EAST OF CASTLEFIELDS AVENUE EAST,
RUNCORN

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site.

Further to the published report, Officers advised
Members that although a drainage design has not yet been




Page 2

agreed, they were satisfied that a solution would be found
and resolved through the existing condition relating to
drainage listed below (number 7). It was noted that a further
issue had arisen relating to securing a secondary
emergency access from the site; this would be secured
through a minor amendment to the scheme and the addition
of a condition. Members were also advised that a further
condition was recommended relating to the submission and
agreement of substation details.

Members requested advice from the Council’s
archaeology advisor in relation to whether it was necessary
to attach a condition for an archaeological watching brief.
Officers advised this would be done and a condition would
be attached if considered necessary.

RESOLVED: That the application is approved subject
to the following conditions and the addition of the conditions
mentioned above:

1. Standard 3 year permission (BE1);

2. Condition specifying approved/amended plans (BE1);

3. Requiring submission and agreement of a
Construction Management Plan including vehicle
access routes and construction car parking (BE1);

4. Materials condition, requiring the submission and
approval of the materials to be used (BE2);

5. Landscaping condition, requiring the submission of
both hard and soft landscaping to include
replacement tree planting (BE2);

6. Boundary treatments including retaining walls to be
submitted and approved in writing (BE2);

7. Drainage detail requiring details to be submitted and
approved including SUDS (sustainable urban
drainage system), ponds details and to be carried out
as approved (BE2);

8. Requiring development be carried out in accordance
with advice and recommendations of the submitted
ecology report (GE21);

9. Wheel cleansing facilities to be submitted and
approved in writing (BE1);

10.Construction and delivery hours to be adhered to
throughout the course of the development (BE1);

11.Vehicle access, parking and servicing to be
constructed prior to occupation of properties /
commencement of use (BE1);

12.Submission and agreement of finished floor and site
levels (BE1);

13. Site investigation, including mitigation to be submitted
and approved in writing (PR14);




DEV4

Page 3

14.Conditions relating to tree protection during
construction (BE1);

15.Restricting Permitted Development Rights for
extensions and outbuildings (BE2);

16.Submission and agreement of  biodiversity
enhancement features including native wildlife
friendly planting, bird/bat nest boxes and insect house
(BE1) and GE21);

17.Grampian style condition relating to off-site highway
works (TP7);

18.Grampian style condition relating to off-site
replacement tree planting (BE1);

19.Requiring development be carried out in accordance
with the submitted FRA (PR16);

20.Condition securing a scheme of improvements to the
Town Brook Habitat corridor in accordance with
details to be submitted to and agreed in writing
(GE®);

21.Condition securing a scheme of protective fencing to
protect Town Park Lake and Town Brook Habitat
Corridor in accordance with details to be submitted to
and agreed in writing (GE21);

22.Provision of emergency access prior to occupation of
any dwelling in accordance with details submitted to
and agreed with the Local Planning Authority;

23.Submission and agreement of substation details; and

24.Archaeological watching brief if considered
necessary.

- 15/00267/FUL - PROPOSED DEMOLITION OF EXISTING
BUILDING AND ERECTION OF 20 DWELLINGS
(COMPRISING 10 HOUSES AND 10 APARTMENTS) AT
THE OLD BRIDGEWATER CENTRE, CASTLEFIELDS
AVENUE NORTH, CASTLEFIELDS, RUNCORN

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined
in the report together with background information in respect
of the site.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved
subject to the following conditions:

1. Standard 3 year permission to commence
development (BE1);

2. Condition specifying approved and amended plans
(BE1);

3. Requiring submission and agreement of a
Construction Management Plan including vehicle
access routes and construction car parking (BE1);

4. Materials condition, requiring the submission and




Page 4

approval of the materials to be used (BE2);

5. Landscaping condition, requiring the submission of
both hard and soft landscaping to include
replacement tree planting (BE2);

6. Boundary treatments including retaining walls to be
submitted and approved in writing (BE2);

7. Wheel cleansing facilities to be submitted and
approved in writing (BE1);

8. Construction and delivery hours to be adhered to
throughout the course of the development (BE1);

9. Vehicle access, parking and servicing to be
constructed prior to occupation of
properties/commencement of use (BE1);

10.Condition relating to the implementation of bin store
provision (BE1);

11.Submission and agreement of finished floor and site
levels (BE1);

12. Site investigation, including mitigation to be submitted
and approved in writing (PR14);

13.Conditions relating to tree protection during
construction (BE1);

14.Restricting Permitted Development Rights for
extensions and outbuildings (BE2);

15.Submission and agreement of biodiversity
enhancement features including native wildlife
friendly planting, bird nest boxes and insect house
(BE1 and GE21);

16.Grampian style condition relating to off-site highway
works (TP7);

17.Grampian style condition relating to off-site
replacement tree planting (BE1);

18.Submission of detailed Japanese Knotweed
eradication plant and validation report; and

19.That when the building is demolished a licenced bat
worker/handler is made available to observe the
works and a validation report by that worker/handler
or suitably qualified person be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority (GE21).

Meeting ended at 6.45 p.m.



REPORT TO:

DATE:

REPORTING OFFICER:

Page 5

Agenda Iltem 3

Development Control Committee

14 September 2015

Strategic Director- Policy and Resources

SUBJECT: Planning Applications to be Determined by the
Committee
WARD(S): Boroughwide
Application No Proposal Location

12/00100/0UT Outline application (with all The Heath Business
matters reserved), for Park, Runcorn
construction of up to 53 dwellings

15/00014/0OUT Proposed industrial building Cornubia Road, Widnes

15/00395/FUL Proposed dropped kerb and 117 Highfield Road,

formation of singular vehicular
access

Widnes




Page 6

APPLICATION NO:

12/00100/OUT

LOCATION: The Heath Business Park, Runcorn
PROPOSAL: Outline application (with all matters reserved), for
construction of up to 53 dwellings
WARD: Heath
PARISH: N/A
CASE OFFICER: Rob Cooper
AGENT(S) / APPLICANT(S): | Terry Rogan / SOG
DEVELOPMENT PLAN Primarily Employment Land
ALLOCATION: Halton Unitary Development Plan (2005)
Halton Core Strategy (2013)
DEPARTURE Yes
REPRESENTATIONS: Yes
KEY ISSUES: Loss of Employment Land
Housing Provision
Loss of trees
Ecology impacts
Public Safety — HSE Hazardous Installation Inner
Zone
Enabling Development
RECOMMENDATION: Resolution to approve, subject to Section 106,
and reference to HSE
SITE MAP

+
=
- >
= L=
e -

i T L ==y

i 1
= P e




1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Page 7

THE APPLICATION

This is an outline application (with all matters reserved), for construction of up
to 53 dwellings on land that currently forms part of the Heath Business and
Technical Park campus. The purpose of an outline application is to establish
the principle of a proposed development. Therefore detailed design matters
are left for a future application (known as a ‘reserved matters application’).
The applicant indicates that the housing being sought through this application
should be viewed as ‘enabling development’ in order to provide a capital sum
for the future remodelling and regeneration of the Heath campus. The
applicant seeks to achieve this through a Section 106 agreement that will link
housing development to the provision of new employment floor space, related
infrastructure and the refurbishment of existing employment floor space.

Documentation

The application has been submitted with the requisite planning application
form, a complete set of plans and supporting information including a design
and access statement, policy statement, newt survey and mitigation report,
flood risk assessment, and an arboriculture report.

APPLICATION SITE

The Site and Surroundings

The application site is predominantly an existing car park associated with the
Heath Business Park, the application site also includes areas of landscaping.
To the western and southern boundary of the application site are the existing
housing areas of Weston Village. The main campus area of the business park
is to the east and north.

Planning History

This application was originally validated in February 2012. At the applicants
request it was held in abeyance while the applicant resolved a number of
issues, together with preparing further ecological studies that can only be
done at certain times of year.

The Heath Business Park has a lengthy planning history covering many
years, and most of the history is not directly relevant to this application.
However, those historic applications that have a relevance to this application
are as follows:
e 06/00594/0OUT — Permitted the creation of up to 17,350 square metres
of new B1 business accommodation across 8 No. individual sites (with
a maximum height of 3 storeys) and car parking. This application is
relevant as it permitted the development of a significant part of this site
for development. It is important to note that the application site is
identified as development land and has previously had consent granted
for development.
e 02/00730/FUL — Permitted the erection of 40 No. two storey dwellings
on a directly adjacent site to this application.

The Heath: 2030 and Beyond




2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

Page 8

Members will be aware of Halton’s regeneration strategy document “The
Heath: 2030 and Beyond” produced in 2010 and updated in 2013. This
document proposes a flexible, pragmatic approach to how The Heath
Business Park can respond to changes in the social and economic climates
and remain a sustainable employment asset. This business park is a key
employment site in Runcorn.

The Business Park has recently seen the addition of Progressive House
(15,000 sqft of new offices) and the recent permission for a 10,000 sqft
laboratory building (both buildings required for existing tenants expanding
their business). However their remain opportunities for further expansion of
employment floor space at the site, and there are significant challenges within
the existing estate in terms of building condition, energy and utilities issues to
be addressed in the short term. Access to the necessary capital to undertake
the required investment remains a key constraint on future development. In a
competitive market it is a constant challenge to provide attractive floor space
to attract and retain employers. At present a major threat is posed by the
Thornton Science Park at Elton, run by the University of Chester. This site
currently has access to significant grant funding, an advantage that The Heath
Business and Technical Park does not.

Work on a masterplan to manage upgrade of existing stock and provision of
new floor space, buildings and facilities has been underway for some time.
The essence of the emerging masterplan is to contract the operational
footprint of The Heath in order to maximise efficiency of land use and thereby
release land for development to raise the capital necessary to invest in the
core business. These land sales will provide the funding for SOG Ltd’s
operational needs and the much-needed modernisation of The Heath’s
offering to north-west businesses so that the Heath can remain a competitive
location to attract and retain businesses.

It should be noted that this application covers land identified in the emerging
masterplan as having potential for housing development due to its adjacency
to existing homes in the document “The Heath: 2030 and Beyond”. This
document does not yet have a statutory planning status, however it is
considered to be a material consideration.

Northern Powerhouse

The Heath Business and Technical Park features strongly in the Halton
response to the Northern Futures debate and the Northern Powerhouse
initiative. The Heath is a highly regarded Business and Technical Park and
the owners have ambitious plans for further development. The synergies
between Sci-Tech Daresbury need to be developed to ensure Halton has a
leading role to play in the ever evolving knowledge economy.

The employment offer at The Heath is unique in Halton as it attracts a mix of
businesses across a wide range of sectors (unlike other sites such as
Daresbury which is very focussed on the science and technology sector).



2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

3.1

3.2

3.3

Page 9

The Council document “The Heath: 2030 and beyond” clearly sets out the
Council’s supportive strategy for the Heath and seeks the remodelling and
development of a mixed use campus incorporating some residential
development at the site. The 2030 document is a Council Regeneration
Strategy document.

Halton currently has a very high level of unemployment. According to
research information published by the Council, Halton’s unemployment figure
for December 2013 was 4%, based on the % of working age claiming Job
Seekers Allowance. The comparable figure for the North West region was
3.3% and for England was 2.8%. Halton’s Job Seeker’s Allowance claimant
rate is ranked joint 34th highest out of 326 Local Authorities in England.

Based on data from the Index of Multiple Deprivation 2010 Halton is ranked
as the 27" most deprived area in terms of overall deprivation out of 326 Local
Authorities in England. Regionally, Halton is ranked the 9" most deprived in
terms of overall deprivation out of 39 Local Authorities in the North West and
is the third most deprived authority in the Liverpool City Region after Liverpool
and Knowsley.

Taking the unemployment and deprivation factors in account; any projects
which are likely to enhance the employment offer at the Heath are considered
to be very attractive to the Council. Increasing employment opportunities
remains a key priority for the Council.

DEVELOPMENT PLAN CONTEXT

Halton Core Strategy Local Plan (2013)
The Core Strategy is the most up-to-date component of the development plan
and provides the overarching strategy for the future development of the
Borough; in this particular case the following policies are applicable and
regard has been had to them:

CS2 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

CS3 Housing Supply and Locational Priorities

CS4 Employment Land Supply and Locational Priorities

CS7 Infrastructure Provision

CS12 Housing Mix

CS13 Affordable Housing

CS15 Sustainable Transport

CS18 High Quality Design

CS19 Sustainable Development and Climate Change

CS20 Natural and Historic Environment

CS23 Managing Pollution and Risk

Joint Waste Local Plan 2013
WM8 Waste Prevention and Resource Management
WM9 Sustainable Waste Management Design and Layout for New
Development

Unitary Development Plan (2005)




3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Page 10

The site is allocated as Primarily Employment land in the Halton
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) and the key policies are:
BE1 General Requirements for Development

BE2 Quality of Design

BE22 Boundary Walls and Fences

GE6 Protection of Designated Greenspace

GE19 Protection of Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation
GE21 Species Protection

PR5 Water Quality

PR12 Development on Land surrounding COMAH sites
PR14 Contaminated Land

PR16 Development and Flood Risk

TP6 Cycle Provision as Part of New Development

TP7 Pedestrian Provision as Part of New Development
TP12 Car Parking

TP14 Transport Assessments

TP15 Accessibility to New Development

TP17 Safe Travel for All

H1 Provision for New Housing

H3  Provision of Recreational Greenspace

E3  Primarily Employment Areas

PR12 Development on Land Surrounding COMAH Sites
PR14 Contaminated Land

Supplementary Planning Documents

The Council’'s New Residential Guidance Supplementary Planning Document
(SPD), Affordable Housing SPD, and Draft Open Space SPD are material
considerations

National Planning Policy Framework

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published in March
2012 to set out the Government’s planning policies for England and how
these should be applied. The NPPF is a material consideration in planning
decisions.

Paragraph 14 states that this presumption in favour of sustainable
development means that development proposals that accord with the
development plan should be approved, unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Where a development plan is absent, silent or relevant
policies are out of date, planning permission should be granted unless any
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh
the benefits when assessed against the policies in the NPPF; or specific
policies within the NPPF indicate that development should be restricted.

Paragraph 196 states that the planning system is plan led. Applications for
planning permission should be determined in accordance with the
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise, as per
the requirements of legislation. Paragraph 197 states that in assessing and
determining development proposals, local planning authorities should apply
the presumption in favour of sustainable development.



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

Page 11

CONSULTATION AND REPRESENTATION

The application has been advertised as a departure by means of a site
notice, press notice and neighbouring properties have been consulted via
letter. Consultation has been undertaken internally with the Highways
Division, the Open Spaces Division, Contaminated Land Officer, and
Environmental Health Officer. Ward Councillors have also been consulted.
Any comments received internally have been incorporated into the
assessment below.

Externally, the Environment Agency, United Utilities, Sabic and the Health and
Safety Executive have been consulted.

The Environment Agency has no objection subject to conditions in relation to
flood risk and drainage design.

United Utilities have no objection to the proposed development.

The Health and Safety Executive have been consulted through both pre-
application discussions and via the PADHI+ system which has resulted in an
‘advise against’ response as the site falls within the inner consultation zone
arising from a hazardous installation. Further details are provided in Section 5.

21 objections have been received raising the following concerns:-

e The site is allocated for employment uses in the UDP

¢ No evidence has been submitted in the form of enabling development or a
viability appraisal.

Risk associated to COMAH site and the HSE objection

Poor design

Failure to acknowledge presence of power lines

Potential for legal challenge and the potential for call-in by the Secretary of
State.

Loss of greenfield

Loss of habitat and impact on ecology

Impact on trees some of which are protected

Loss of privacy to existing homes

Proximity of overhead power lines and health risk

Potential impact on the hydrogen and brine mains

Height of proposed properties in relation to existing properties on Weston
Crescent.

Increase in traffic

Loss of secure boundary treatments to existing properties

Drainage

Disruption during building works in terms of noise, dust, light waste and
traffic.

ASSESSMENT

Development Plan Policies




5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

Page 12

As the site is identified as employment land within the UDP and Core
Strategy, the starting point is the consideration of employment policies. In very
simple terms, a proposal for housing on employment land would be contrary
to policy and therefore not supported as it does not accord with the
development plan. However, in this case a detailed analysis of the relevant
policies is required, together with a weighing up of all material considerations.

Policy CS4 ‘Employment Land Supply and Locational Priorities’ of the Halton
Core Strategy Local Plan is of key relevance. Policy CS4 states that
‘employment land supply will be made up from a number of sources,
including: sites which have the potential to contribute to employment land
supply through regeneration and remodelling opportunities within existing
employment areas’. This application promotes a case for the remodelling of
the business park in order to deliver regeneration of the ageing building stock
and new employment floor space. SOG Ltd has demonstrated their
commitment to investing in new employment buildings and the business park
with the construction of Progressive House.

In order to comply with policy CS4, the applicant has explained in their
supporting information that this application has been made to enable further
employment floor space development within the business park. Enabling
development is a form of planning benefit that occurs when a development is
proposed to which there would normally be policy objection, but the planning
benefit can be secured by a cross-subsidy to land or buildings in the same
control/ownership. The applicant has provided a viability statement which
explains why the cross subsidy is needed, and why the type and scale of the
development is necessary. This supports a S106 agreement that links the
development of housing to the provision of employment floor space,
infrastructure, and regeneration of the business park.

The applicant has agreed that a significant part of the proceeds they receive
from housing development will be re-invested into the business park to
provided new floor space, infrastructure, and refurbishing existing buildings to
make these attractive to the market. These benefits will be secured through a
Section 106 agreement with the applicant. Therefore, this proposal conforms
with the thrust of policy CS4 as the development will contribute to the
provision of new employment floor space and ensure that an adequate supply
and range of sites are available to:
e meet the needs of both new and existing businesses
e develop and strengthen Halton’s economy with an emphasis on ...
science and technology industries and
e contribute towards the priorities of the employment offer in the sub-
region

The applicant’s submission justifies the development of the application site for
residential purposes in order to secure the regeneration and remodelling of
the wider employment area and this approach is considered to comply with
policy CS4. The case made out for ‘enabling development’ to deliver new
employment floor space combined with the applicants proposed Section 106,
that links housing development to employment floor space delivery, satisfies



5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

Page 13

the policy criteria to maintain existing employment areas. This is because it is
considered that the alternative use of the application site for housing will
provide a greater benefit to the Borough by providing the capital necessary to
implement the regeneration and remodelling of the wider business park by
enabling the development and refurbishment of the remaining employment
areas. This is an aim of policy CS4.

Previous examples of enabling development in employment cases have been
found, such as the case of lan Frazer English v East Staffordshire Borough
Council 2/11/2010. In this example the court considered whether the LPA had
been wrong to make a decision about a housing development that would
cross subsidise the construction of the National Football Centre. The court
agreed with the LPA’s argument that they had sufficient information in relation
to financial viability to support the application.

Policy CS4 further states that any proposals for non-employment uses within
existing employment areas should be accompanied by an examination of the
wider employment land situation in the Borough, including a consideration of:
e the overall supply of employment land in the Borough, in accordance
with this policy;
o the relative suitability and sustainability of the site for the employment
uses and for the proposed alternative use;
e the location of the site and its relationship to other uses; and
e the need for the proposed use.

The Heath Business Park is listed within the policy as one of Halton’s existing
local employment areas. Table 3 within the policy CS4 recognises that as part
of future land supply for employment uses, remodelling and regeneration
opportunities across existing employment areas need to be taken forward.
Therefore, the proposal is in accordance with this aspect of CS4.

The application site is considered suitable and sustainable for housing as it is
directly adjacent to the significant housing areas of Weston Village and forms
a natural extension to these. As the application site is on the edge of the
business park, it will not interfere with the ongoing employment uses within
the campus. The application site is not currently in employment uses, it
currently provides landscaping and car parking. There will be no loss of
employment floor space under the proposal.

The site is well located to provide a continuation of the existing housing
development within Weston Village and relates well to surrounding uses. The
application proposes suitable buffering and boundary treatments between the
proposed housing and retained employment areas.

As the proposed use is housing there is a very well acknowledged national
need for new dwelling stock. This additional housing site will contribute
additional dwellings and increase the choice of housing sites available within
Halton. The house types proposed are considered to complement the
employment offer at the Heath through the provision of executive style homes
that will help attract and retain skilled individuals into the Borough.



5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

Page 14

The proposed development is within a Primarily Employment Area designated
in Policy E3 of the Halton Unitary Development Plan as a ‘Primarily
Employment Area’. Development falling within Use Classes B1, B2, B8 and
Sui Generis will be permitted. As this proposal for residential development in
this location is a departure from this policy it has been advertised as
such in order to encourage a wide consultation to be undertaken.

Design and Residential Amenity

The application site has residential properties to the south on Fields Way,
Weston Crescent and Heath Road South. The proposed housing would
extend this existing residential area. The applicant has provided indicative
housing elevations; these provide indicative details of scale, design and
appearance. The indicative dwellings would be two storeys, and a mix of 4
bed detached and 3 bed semidetached, and the flats would be three storey.

Objections have been raised by local residents notably on Weston Crescent in
relation to the land levels, design and heights of proposed dwellings. This
application is outline, the plans that have been provided are only for indicative
purposes, and to demonstrate that the number of proposed dwellings could be
constructed in compliance with the Council’s policies and standards, taking
into account interface distances, and levels with the existing surrounding
housing, and within the site itself. The submitted indicative plans demonstrate
that in principle up to 53 dwellings, and the types of dwelling are acceptable in
principle.

The final design of the dwellings, the final site layout, levels, interface
distances, landscaping and boundary treatments will all be dealt with in the
submission of a future application for reserved matters that is required before
development can commence. The final design and layout will be required to
comply with the adopted New Residential Development Guidance and
Designing for Community Safety SPD.

In summary, the indicative plans provide enough information to demonstrate
that there is sufficient space within the site to accommodate the council’s
design standards within the site, pending any final design and submission of
reserved matters, and that a scheme of up to 53 dwellings can be comfortably
designed and accommodated within the site to comply with the design of New
Residential Development SPD and Policies BE1, BE2, H1 and H3 of the
Halton UDP and CS18 of the Halton Core Strategy.

Planning for Risk Policies and the Health and Safety Executive’s Advice
There has been a major hazard facility in this part of Runcorn for many years
and both the business park and housing areas have existed in this location
since before planning controls around major hazard sites came into force in
the early 1990s. The local areas are covered by the HSE’s Control of Major
Accident Hazards (COMAH) consultation zones, and as such there are a
number of onsite and off-site safety measures that are already in place, these
include onsite safety measure, the production of public information and safety
advice by the operators, and the Council’s Off-Site Emergency Plan.



5.19

5.20

5.21

5.22

5.23

5.24

5.25

Page 15

Due to its proximity to the Ineos/Mexichem sites, the existing residential areas
are within the Public Information Zone. At least every five years an
information pack is sent out to all people living and working within the zone.
The information pack includes information about the INEOS and Mexichem
operations and the products they make, handle and store at the Runcorn Site,
it informs people of the steps they take onsite to prevent a major emergency
and what action the public must take in the unlikely event of a major
emergency.

The Safety Advice Card that is also distributed explains what people should
do in the unlikely event of a major emergency involving the INEOS or
Mexichem sites. If there is an emergency at the site, an emergency siren is
sounded in accordance with the Council’s off-site emergency plan. The Safety
Advice Card outlines what actions the public should take if they hear the siren
or become aware of a major emergency at the site. As Members and local
residents will be aware, this is tested with one short blast at 13:00 hrs every
Monday.

Health and Safety Executive’s (HSE) Public Safety Concerns

The application site is close to two industrial sites: Ineos and Mexichem.
These are defined as major hazard establishments under the Control of Major
Accident Hazards (COMAH) and Hazardous Substances Consent legislation.
Both sites represent a highest hazard industrial complex.

A worst case event at the nearby major hazard sites would be catastrophic
resulting in a large chemical release. This would generate a large toxic gas
cloud and would be expected to result in a significant number of deaths, with
the majority of survivors suffering various degrees of acute poisoning. Large
releases of other toxic gases are also possible.

Therefore, in response to the consultation on this application, the HSE have
advised against this development as it falls within the HSE’s inner
consultation zone. The inner zone represents the residual risk of receiving a
Dangerous Dose or worse, at levels of 10cpm (chances per million per year).
A Dangerous Dose, as defined by HSE would lead to:

e severe distress to all

e a substantial number requiring medical attention; some requiring

hospital treatment, and;
e some (about 1% fatalities)

For the purposes of comparing risks posed by different development types,
HSE has a long standing method of assessing the degree of risk to
populations associated with a proposed development. This is known as the
Scaled Risk Integral (SRI). HSE would normally request call-in for cases
where the SRI exceeds 750,000.

Members are directed by case law to give significant weight to the advice of
the HSE and their public safety concerns, giving it the most careful
consideration. HSE considers its role to be discharged when it is satisfied that



Page 16

the local planning authority had given its advice the most careful consideration
and it is acting in full understanding of that advice and the consequences that
could follow.

5.26 Planning for Risk — Development Plan Policies

Due to the proximity to hazardous installations, Core Strategy policy CS23
and UDP policy PR12 are applicable to the proposal. The application site
straddles the 10cpm risk contour boundary that is defined and used in local
planning policy in connection with hazardous installations, specifically Ineos
and Mexichem at Weston. This contour indicates the area where an
individual’s risk of fatality in any one year is 10 chances per million or greater.
The contour itself is derived from risk modelling and then interpolated onto a
map through reference to physical features. The exact location of the line on
the map is therefore, to a certain degree, arbitrary rather than reflecting an
absolute accuracy. The full detail of the Council’s approach to risk is set out in
the Planning for Risk Supplementary Planning Document that provides
additional detail to policies CS23 and PR12 reproduced below:

5.27 Core Strategy Policy CS23 — Managing Pollution and Risk
b) Reducing Risks from Hazards

To prevent and minimise the risk from potential accidents at hazardous

installations and facilities, the following principles will apply:

e Minimisation of risk to public safety and property wherever
practicable.

e Controlling inappropriate development within identified areas of risk
surrounding existing hazardous installations or facilities, to ensure
that the maximum level of acceptable individual risk does not
exceed 10 chances per million and that the population exposed to
risk is not increased.

e Ensuring that any proposals for new or expanded hazardous
installations are carefully considered in terms of environmental,
social and economic factors.

5.28 Policy PR 12 ‘Development on Land Surrounding COMAH Sites’
1 Development on land within consultations zones around notified
COMAMH sites will be permitted provided that all of the following criteria
can be satisfied:

a) The likely accidental risk level from the COMAH site is not
considered to be significant.

b) Proposals are made by the developer that will mitigate the likely
effects of a potential major accident so that they are not considered
significant.

The definition of what constitutes a significant major accidental risk is
related to the same policy development framework for risks levels set
out in the justification to Policy PR9 above, where an individual
accidental risk level of 10 chances per million (cpom) in a year is the



5.29

5.30

5.31

5.32

5.33

5.34

5.35

Page 17

maximum considered acceptable, with the same provisos set out in the
Jjustification to Policy PR9.

Planning for Risk Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)
The purpose of the SPD is to:

1. complement and expand upon policies set out in the Core Strategy
and UDP policies by providing additional and more detailed policies
for:

e deciding how new developments which create significant
potential off site accidental risks should be balanced against the
benefits they will bring;

e deciding how new developments, in areas already exposed to
significant existing potential accidental risks, should be balanced
against the benefits they will bring, and;

2. explain in more detail how UDP policies should be interpreted.
The SPD policy at 5.7, 5.10, and 5.12 are significant material considerations:

“5.7 Development on land within areas around hazardous installations
identified as having an individual accidental risk level exceeding 10 cpm
will not normally be permitted.”

Paragraph 5.9 of the SPD provides the following justification:
“‘Where planning applicants submit additional expert information
demonstrating to the Council’s satisfaction that calculated accidental
risk levels are less than those shown in Policy 5.7 then such
applications will be considered to comply with that policy.”

5.10 Development on land within areas around hazardous installations
identified as having an individual accidental risk level exceeding 100
cpm will not be permitted.

Paragraph 5.11 provides the following advice:
“If the figure exceeds 100 cpm for existing development no new
development would normally allowed. However, paragraph 24
Appendix B clarifies the different methodology between assumed
failure rates at hazardous installations and historical experience of
actual accidents around airports. The methodology described in
paragraph 24 Appendix B is more conservative in its assumptions than
the well-established PSZ policy structure. It is therefore reasonable to
examine individual cases carefully before refusing all development
where risk levels exceed 100 cpom or to refuse all but low density
development proposals where risk levels exceed 10 com.”

“5.12 Proposals made by a developer that will mitigate the likely effects
of a potential major accident so that they are not considered significant
will normally be permitted.”



5.36

5.37

5.38

5.39

Page 18

In connection with policies 5.7, 5.10, and 5.12, the applicant has
commissioned the specialised risk consultants ‘DNV’ to put forward expert
evidence in support of their application. The report concludes that with the
incorporation of mitigation measures to be included in the detail design of the
dwellings, the risk arising from proximity to hazardous installations can be
minimised. Specifically, the suggested mitigation is as follows:
[.  reduction in air change rates from the usual 2 to 3 air changes per hour
to, preferably, 0.3 ACH, and
II.  extension of the existing monitoring and early warning system already
in place between Ineos and The Heath to the new development
These features are to be incorporated into the final design of the proposed
dwellings. The risks at the proposed housing can be reduced by practical
measures such as limiting the movement of air from the outside to the inside
of a house (infiltration). This measure would reduce the quantity of toxic gas
that would enter a house (in the event of a toxic gas release) in a similar way
to that which is applied to reduce the risks from radon in housing.

Pre-application discussions have been held with the HSE who have confirmed
that the HSE’s “advise against” the proposed development. However, it is for
a local planning authority, as the decision maker, to decide whether to support
or resist the application on public safety grounds. If a local planning authority
is minded to grant planning permission against the Health and Safety
Executive’s advice, it would need to give the Health and Safety Executive
advance notice of that intention. A local planning authority must give notice to
the Health and Safety Executive of their resolution, allowing 21 days from the
date of that notice for the HSE to give further consideration to the matter. This
will enable the HSE to consider whether to request the Secretary of State for
Communities and Local Government to call-in the application.

It therefore falls to the local planning authority to decide the level of residual
risk that is acceptable, when balanced against other material planning
considerations. In other words, HSE may advise on what the level of risk is
but it is for the planning authority to consider whether it is acceptable both in
itself and when balanced against other material planning considerations. This
emphasises that the responsibility lies with the local planning authority since
safety is but one of many factors to be considered in planning decisions.

In summary, the HSE have made clear and concise representations and
advise against this application. The HSE’s advice is to be given the most
careful consideration. In terms of Halton’s development plan policies, the
application site straddles the 10cpm contour, and a significant part of the
application site falls within the 10cpm zone. However in accordance with
development plan policies CS23 and PR12, and the supplementary document
‘Planning for Risk’, the applicant has submitted expert evidence to
demonstrate that risks can be mitigated. It is clear that the off-site emergency
plan and public safety advice all help to further reduce and mitigate the risk
from the hazardous installation that gives rise to that risk. In conclusion,
significant weight is given to the HSE representations and these have been
most carefully considered, however the application is considered to comply



5.40

5.41

5.42

5.43

5.44

5.45

5.46

Page 19

with Development Plan policies and the SPD dealing with risk arising from
hazardous installations.

Public Open Space

The application has been submitted with an indicative layout plan that shows
that a final scheme can be designed to incorporate incidental open space, to
achieve a quality living environment, but it is unlikely to achieve onsite
provision at levels to accord within adopted policy.

Ordinarily in these instances the LPA would request a Section 106
contribution in lieu of onsite provision. However, in this particular case the
development is considered to be enabling development and the proceeds of
the scheme are to be used to re-invest in the Heath campus to provide
employment opportunities. Furthermore, there is already a significant amount
of open space to the north along Heath Road South, which includes playing
fields that are designated as protected greenspace in the Halton Unitary
Development Plan. Given the enabling development proposal and close
proximity of the adjacent open spaces, it would be unreasonable to expect full
onsite provision or payment in lieu.

Trees

The Open Spaces Officer has been consulted and has confirmed that Tree
Preservation Order no.110 covers the majority of the tree groups within the
site. The trees covered by this order will be significantly affected by
development of the site.

The proposal seeks to remove 106 trees in total from the site to facilitate the
development. Of these 106, 47 trees are currently subject to statutory
protection. Only 1 of the 47 would be being removed due to its condition
(T166 silver birch). 18 trees of the 106 proposed to be removed, would be
felled due to their condition, the rest would be removed to facilitate the
development.

The application site area is 3.99 hectares resulting in a proposed density of
only 13 dwellings per hectare. This is a low density and provides for flexibility
in the final design to take into account tree protection measures where
possible, and also allow for new replacement planting within the final
landscaping scheme. This application is outline with all matters reserved,
therefore the specific footprints of the dwellings in relation to the trees are yet
to be fixed.

The applicant has proposed to mitigate the loss of trees on a two for one
basis. The Heath Business Park as a whole covers a land area in excess of
17 hectares and comes under the control of the applicant. Therefore there are
significant opportunities for suitable replacement planting across the wider site
and it would therefore be reasonable to condition this mitigation planting.

In conclusion, whilst the loss of a significant amount of protected trees would
be regrettable, the provision of housing and the enabling of further
employment opportunities in this primary employment area are considered to



5.47

5.48

5.49

5.50

5.51

5.52

Page 20

carry significant weight and are of benefit to the Borough as a whole. A future
reserved matters application will provide an opportunity to consider alternative
layouts that can retain as many of the trees as possible, and for those that are
removed, there are significant opportunities for mitigation and replacement
planting both within the application site and the wider Heath Business Park.

Highway Safety

The applicant has submitted a transport assessment with the application and
the Council’'s Highways Engineer has been consulted. The principle of
obtaining access directly from Heath Road South, is acceptable. However, the
final design detail of this junction and the design of the internal layout will be
dealt with when a future reserved matters application is submitted. Specific
conditions have been recommended for offsite highways works, a safety audit
and a construction traffic management plan.

The application site is on the main communal carpark to the western edge of
the business park site. The applicant states that the Heath currently has
existing business space of some 26,000sgm and is serviced by approximately
1,200 spaces. This equates to a parking ratio of 1 space per 22 sgm. The
current Halton UDP requirements for business park parking quote a maximum
ratio of 1 space per 40 sgm. This figure is intended to encourage the use of
alternative modes of transport. It is also very close to the actual take-up of
parking spaces at The Heath during a normal working day.

The applicant states that until completion of the adjacent Progressive House
unit, the car park was hardly used, and vacant spaces are usually available on
the other parking areas around the site. SOG is committed to promoting
sustainable travel to The Heath by means other than the private car, and has
submitted a copy of its travel plan with this application.

The loss of the west car park is not considered to have a significant impact on
parking issues. Furthermore the emerging masterplan for the Heath Business
Park does propose new car parking areas to the north and south ends of the
central boulevard, these are envisaged to provide sufficient parking for any
future expansion of the business park.

Viability and affordable housing

In accordance with Policy CS13 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan, the
application has been submitted with a viability appraisal. The appraisal details
and breaks down the costs of the development and provides an analysis of
market conditions.

It is considered that the scheme would be unviable if the Local Planning
Authority were to insist on the provision of affordable housing and open space
payments on top of the money that would be invested into the Heath
Technical Park to secure future employment opportunities. Notwithstanding
this, the purpose of the enabling development proposed here is to achieve
remodelling of the campus and create new employment floor space. Securing
planning obligations for other planning gains would therefore reduce the



5.53

5.54

5.55

5.56

5.57

5.58

Page 21

capital available for re-investment in the campus and, given these
circumstances, is not considered appropriate in this case.

Flood Risk and Drainage

The application has been submitted with a flood risk assessment and this was
sent to The Environment Agency for consultation. The Environment Agency
has no objections, submission of full drainage design details are therefore
recommended as a condition.

Ecology and Habitats

The application has been submitted with a GCN newt survey report and
associated mitigation measures. The Council’s ecological advisor at
Merseyside Environmental Advisory Service has been consulted, at the time
of writing this report the final comments are still outstanding, and members
will be provided an update on this matter. However it is expected that the
mitigation measures proposed are acceptable and it will be recommended
that these form a condition of the application.

With the incorporation of the mitigation, the proposal is therefore considered
to comply with Policy GE21 of the Halton Unitary Development Plan, and
Policy CS20 of the Halton Core Strategy Local Plan.

Contaminated Land

The application has been submitted with a site investigation report and the
contaminated land officer has been consulted. Report provides sufficient
information to be able to support the application at this outline stage.

Housing Offer

Core Strategy policy CS3 deals with housing supply and locational priorities.
This policy identifies that a proportion of potential housing supply will come
from windfall development. It is noted that this site is identified in the Halton
Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment and therefore is identified as
contributing to the five year supply of land. Policy CS3 sets out that the
Council will seek to maintain a five year supply of housing land across the
Borough in accordance with Government guidance. The housing to be
provided by this proposal fulfils a market niche for this area of Runcorn and
will complement the employment offer at the Heath by providing attractive
housing for those with higher earning potential who commute into the Borough
to work. The Core Strategy para 2.30 and foot note 20 describes a need for
more family and aspirational housing. The footnote references the 2011
Strategic Housing Market Assessment.

Relevant SHMA paragraph extracts are as follows:

“5.20 The Council’s aspiration to diversify the housing stock may help to attract and
retain higher qualified people, who the evidence (particularly of earnings) suggests
currently commute into the Borough to work.

5.29 The proposed projects and development schemes outlined provide the potential
to support substantial economic growth over the period to 2028 in Halton. This
employment growth can be expected to contribute to housing demand locally. It



5.59

5.60

5.61

Page 22

includes employment growth in key higher value sectors which will potentially support
housing demand for aspirational housing and for urban living.

5.33 Through diversifying the housing offer, and providing more aspirational family
housing in particular, there is potential to change the occupational profile over time —
attracting more people in higher paid occupations to live within the Borough. This
could include those currently employed within the Borough who commute in to work,
or those who could be attracted by the Borough’s strong transport links. Evidence of
differences in the current occupational mix between different parts of the Borough
support the potential to do this.

21.9 There is a need to diversify the housing offer at both a strategic and local level.

22.18 This SHMA indicated that in the longer-term to 2026, it is expected that market
demand will be greatest for family housing and particularly for three-bedroom
properties. It also recognises the Council’s ambition to diversify the housing offer and
retain higher-income households who currently commute into Halton to work. This
will help to support local regeneration.

22.19 The balance of sites that the Council proposes to bring forward through the
Core Strategy supports this approach. It includes a number of larger sites which will
be capable of delivering a mix of housing including larger homes.”

The housing proposed by the application will connect with the employment
offer at the Heath and is considered to be in conformity with the Borough’s
housing and regeneration aspirations. The site will contribute towards the
requirement to have a five year supply of land for housing contained in the
National Planning Policy Framework, and furthermore the application site is
identified in the Halton SHLAA. A development of up to 53 new homes locally
will help to increase the amount and type of dwellings available locally.

It is noted that policy CS3 seeks a minimum density of 30 dwellings per
hectare. Although the development proposed is of a lower density, this is
partly attributable to the presence of constraints on the site, such as electricity
pylons and easements for buried infrastructure. These constraints reduce the
amount of developable land significantly. Furthermore, larger homes designed
for aspirational families tend to have a larger plot size and this impacts upon
the density of dwellings that can be achieved. The density achieved by this
scheme is considered to be acceptable.

Policy CS3 also seeks to deliver 40% of new residential development on
brownfield land. The application site is predominantly a brownfield site, having
been previously developed as a large car park. The application therefore
complies with the objective of seeking housing on brownfield sites. It should
be noted that UDP policy H1 states at paragraph 4):

“Development on previously-used (brownfield) land within the existing urban
area will be permitted, provided that it is in compliance with the policies in the
Plan, irrespective of whether or not the land is allocated in policy H1".

5.62 The proposal complies with UDP policy H1.



6.2

6.3

7.2

7.3

7.4

Page 23

Other matters

Representations have also been received regarding the proximity of overhead
power lines and potential health risk. No evidence has been provided in
relation to health risks.

The potential impacts of the hydrogen and brine mains which run through the
site have also been raised as an issue. Sabic, the pipeline operator has been
consulted; any construction around the pipeline will be a technical matter that
the developer would have to agree with the pipeline operator. This is not a
planning reason for refusal.

Concerns have also been raised in relation to disruption during building works
in terms of noise, dust, light waste and traffic. These can be dealt with by
attaching conditions in relation to hours of working and deliveries, and the
submission and approval of an appropriate construction traffic management
plan.

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

In conclusion, this proposal is in outline only, meaning that all detailed matters
are reserved for future determination. The applicant has provided sufficient
information to demonstrate that there is space within the site to accommodate
the Council’s standards in any final design and that a scheme of up to 53
dwellings can be accommodated within the site given its associated
constraints. The proposed layout is considered to comply with the design of
New Residential Development SPD and Policies BE1, BE2, H1 and H3 of the
Halton UDP and CS18 of the Halton Core Strategy.

Although the proposal is a departure from Policy E3 of the Halton Unitary
Development Plan, the applicant has agreed to enter into a legal agreement
that sets out how construction of the 53 dwellings will fund further expansion
of the Heath (SOG) Business Park, helping to provide further employment
land supply through remodelling and regeneration opportunities. The proposal
is therefore considered to comply with Policy CS4, which is the more recent
policy in relation to employment land supply.

The proposal is at the edge of the area where Halton exercises development
control on COMAH grounds because of the risk from the Ineos complex. If
practicable measures were incorporated into the design of the houses, the
risk to people at the very closest point to the Ineos site could be reduced to
11cpm (therefore virtually all of the proposed development would be subject
to a risk level which is below the threshold set out in Halton’s planning
policies. The proposal is considered to comply with policies CS23 and PR12
and the Planning for Risk SPD.

In terms of an overall planning balance, significant weight is attributed to the
representations from the HSE who advise against the development, and this
advice has been given the most careful consideration. The loss of trees
covered by statutory protections also carries negative weight, as does the
negative impact upon ecology. The loss of employment land to an alternative
use (housing) is also a negative aspect of this proposal.



7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

Page 24

Mitigation is to be considered in terms of these negative aspects of the
proposal. Mitigation can be implemented within the development to improve
public safety and reduce the consequences of an actual event involving the
nearby hazardous installations (as set out above). Mitigation is also proposed
to reduce the loss of trees and the impact on ecology and habitat. As the
proposal is for enabling development, this mitigates the loss of employment
land to housing, as it is proposed to use a proportion of the capital receipts
from the housing scheme to create new employment floor space within the
Heath campus.

Significant positive weight should be given to the creation of additional
employment floor space and the associated generation of jobs within this
primary employment area, as this is a key priority for the Borough. Significant
weight should also be given to the creation of additional housing stock within
this area and the contribution this site makes to maintaining a five year supply
of housing sites. The proposal will see development of a brownfield site within
the urban area of Runcorn. Additional housing and employment will contribute
to the overall sustainability of Runcorn, and the Borough. Overall, the
positives of the scheme are considered to outweigh the negative aspects of
the proposed development.

In this respect, the proposal is considered to be sustainable development
consistent with the economic, social and environmental roles of sustainable
development outlined in paragraph 7 of the NPPF.

It is on this basis that Committee Members as asked to pass a resolution to
approve the application, delegating the final decision to the Operational
Director — Planning, Policy and Transportation in consultation with the Chair
or Vice Chair, to enable officers to write to the Health and Safety Executive to
allow them to consider if the application should be called in by the Secretary
of State, and also to finalise the wording of the Section 106 agreement.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the delegated powers are given to the Operational
Director — Policy, Planning & Transportation in consultation with the Chair or
Vice Chair of the Development Control Committee to make a final
determination once the application has been referred to the Health and Safety
Executive to request whether or not they wish the application to be called in
by the Secretary of State. If the application is not called in, the application
would be approved, subject to a Section 106, and issued subject to the
following conditions:-

1. Standard Outline conditions (BE1)

2. Reserved matters to comply with the New Residential Development

3 Guidance and the Designing for Community Safety SPD (BE1, BE2
and BE22)

4. No development shall begin until written details of a construction

management plan has been approved in writing (BE1)



Page 25

5. Materials condition, requiring the submission and approval of the
materials to be used (BE2)

6. Landscaping conditions, requiring the submission of both hard and soft
landscaping to include replacement tree and hedgerow planting. (BE2)

7. Boundary treatments including retaining walls to be submitted and

approved in writing. (BE2)

Prior to commencement the submission of details of any retaining walls

Wheel cleansing facilities to be submitted and approved in writing

(BE1)

10. Construction and delivery hours to be adhered to throughout the
course of the development. (BE1)

11.  Submission and agreement of existing and proposed site and finish
floor levels. (BE1)

12.  Prior to commencement condition for foul and surface water drainage
details

©

If the S106 Agreement or alternative arrangement is not executed
within a reasonable period of time, authority be delegated to the
Operational Director — Policy, Planning & Transportation in consultation
with the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Committee to refuse the
application on the grounds that it fails to comply with Policy S25
(Planning Obligations).

. SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

As required by:
e Paragraph 186 — 187 of the National Planning Policy Framework;
e The Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (England) (Amendment No.2) Order 2012; and
e The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas)
(Amendment) (England) Regulations 2012.
This statement confirms that the local planning authority has worked
proactively with the applicant to secure developments that improve the
economic, social and environmental conditions of Halton.



Page 26

APPLICATION NO: 15/00014/0UT

LOCATION: Cornubia Road

PROPOSAL.: Proposed industrial building

WARD: Riverside

PARISH: N/A

CASE OFFICER: Rob Cooper

AGENT(S) / Clark Transport Ltd

APPLICANT(S):

DEVELOPMENT PLAN National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

ALLOCATION: Halton Unitary Development Plan (2005)
Halton Core Strategy (2013)

DEPARTURE No

REPRESENTATIONS: No

KEY ISSUES: Access and Parking
Contaminated Land

RECOMMENDATION: Request for delegated authority (outstanding
contaminated land report)

SITE MAP

1. APPLICATION SITE

1.1 The Site and Surroundings

The application site is located at the former Clarke Transport Ltd, on Cornubia
Road, Widnes the site is located approximately 700m south east of Widnes town
centre. The site covers an area of 0.7 hectares, and is bounded to all sides by
other industrial/employment sites.

1.2 Planning History




Page 27

The only relevant planning history is permission 98/00658/FUL which was granted
for a 2.4m high fence.

THE APPLICATION
The application is for a new industrial development for general industrial use (B2).

2.1 Documentation

The application has been submitted with the requisite planning application form, a
complete set of plans and supporting information including a design and access
statement.

. POLICY CONTEXT

National Planning Policy Framework

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published in March 2012 to
set out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these should be
applied.

Paragraph 196 states that the planning system is plan led. Applications for
planning permission should be determined in accordance with the development
plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise, as per the requirements of
legislation, but that the NPPF is a material consideration in planning decisions.
Paragraph 197 states that in assessing and determining development proposals,
local planning authorities should apply the presumption in favour of sustainable
development.

Paragraph 14 states that this presumption in favour of sustainable development
means that development proposals that accord with the development plan should
be approved, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Where a
development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out of date, planning
permission should be granted unless any adverse impacts of doing so would
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the
policies in the NPPF; or specific policies within the NPPF indicate that
development should be restricted.

Unitary Development Plan (2005)
The site is allocated as Primarily Employment land in the Halton Unitary
Development Plan (UDP) and the key policies, which relate to the development,
are:

BE1 General Requirements for Development

BE2 Quality of Design

BE22 Boundary Walls and Fences

PR5 Water Quality

PR14 Contaminated Land

PR16 Development and Flood Risk

TP6 Cycle Provision as Part of New Development

TP7 Pedestrian Provision as Part of New Development

TP12 Car Parking

TP14 Transport Assessments

TP15 Accessibility to New Development




Page 28

TP17 Safe Travel for All
PR14 Contaminated Land

Halton Core Strategy Local Plan (2013)
The Core Strategy provides the overarching strategy for the future development of
the Borough, in this particular case the following policies are of relevance:

CS2 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

CS4

CS7 Infrastructure Provision

CS15 Sustainable Transport

CS18 High Quality Design

CS19 Sustainable Development and Climate Change

CS23 Managing Pollution and Risk

Joint Waste Local Plan 2013
WM8 Waste Prevention and Resource Management
WM9 Sustainable Waste Management Design and Layout for New
Development

4. CONSULTATION AND REPRESENTATION
The application has been advertised by means of a site notice, press
notice and neighbouring properties have been consulted via letter. Consultation
has been undertaken internally with the Highways Division, and Contaminated
Land Officer. Any comments received internally have been incorporated into the
assessment below.

5. ASSESSMENT

Planning Policy

The site is designated as primarily employment in the Halton Unitary
Development Plan, policy E3 is therefore of relevance to the proposed
development. Policy E3 allows for new employment development including B1,
B2 and B8 uses as well as suitable industrial sui generis uses. In this particular
case the application is for a new industrial development for general industrial use
(B2), the proposed use is therefore considered to be acceptable in principle.

Other relevant policies in the Unitary Development Plan (UDP) include BE1
‘General Requirements for Development’, BE2 Quality of Design, E5 ‘New
Commercial and Industrial Development’ and PR14 ‘Contaminated Land’. Core
Strategy Policy CS23 ‘Managing Pollution and Risk’ is also of relevance. These
policies have been addressed in the relevant sections below.

Design and Layout

The applicant has provided a purely indicative layout drawing no 01 Rev A,
illustrating how they envisage the proposed new industrial building and
associated access, car parking and service areas to be laid out. The indicative
layout demonstrates the scale of the development (1743m2 of gross industrial
floor space) can be accommodated within the site and provide a suitable access
and parking provision.




Page 29

The applicant has provided indicative elevations of the building, however the final
detailed design and appearance and materials would be agreed at the reserved
matters stage. The information provided demonstrates that a well designed
building would be achieved that would comply with Policies BE2 and E5 of the
UDP and CS4 of the Core Strategy.

Highway Safety

When the application was originally submitted it was seeking permission for
3140m2, but the scheme provided car parking spaces significantly below the
Council adopted car parking standard of 1 space per 50 square meters of gross
floor space. The layout and locations of the building also created issues with
access and visibility within the site.

The indicative layout has now been amended reducing the floor space from
3140m2 to 1743 m2, and now provides a satisfactory number of car parking
spaces. Furthermore, the removal of the second building has allowed for a more
open aspect into the site improving inter-visibility between vehicles entering and
leaving the site. This application is in outline with all matter reserved, therefore
the final access and layout details will not be finalised until a future reserved
matters application is submitted.

Flood Risk and Drainage

The site is located within a flood risk zone 1; therefore a flood risk assessment is
not required. The site is not within an area of critical drainage or an area prone to
surface water flooding. It is therefore reasonable for drainage details to be
provided post decision, a suitable condition is therefore recommended.

Contaminated Land

The application site is located within and area of potentially contaminated land
that is identified in the Council’'s contaminated land register. This is predominately
due to the long history of industrial uses in the area.

Policy CS23 of the Core Strategy Local Plan states that prior to development on
potentially contaminated land or unstable land, sites should be investigated to
ascertain the extent of any contamination and possible risks to future uses.
Development will only be permitted where the land has, or will be made suitable
for the proposed use. To ensure that the land can be made suitable for the
proposed use, it is essential that the applicant provides at least a phase one
contaminated land report to allow the Council to consider the relevant issues.
Policy PR14 of the Unitary Development Plan States that before determining any
planning application for development on or adjacent to land which is known or
suspected to be contaminated, the applicant will be required to satisfy the
following criteria:
a. Submit details to assess the nature and degree of contamination (type
degree and extent of contamination).
b. ldentify remedial measures required to deal with any hazard to
safeguard future development and neighbouring uses.
c. Submit details of a program of implementation for the completion of
mitigation measures to be agreed with the Council.



Page 30

In this instance the applicant has yet to submit any of the above details for the
Local Planning Authority to consider. However, this is now the only outstanding
matter preventing the approval of this application as all other matters are
considered satisfactory. Officers are therefore requesting delegated authority to
determine this application (in consultation with the Chair or Vice-Chair), provided
the applicant submits information in relation to contaminated land and this is
considered to be satisfactory. If the applicant does not submit these details within
a reasonable amount of time then the application would be refused for non-
compliance with Policy PR14 of the Unitary Development Plan, CS23 of the Core
Strategy Local Plan and paragraphs 120, 121 and 122 of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

In conclusion, the proposed development will provide significant investment in
this currently vacant plot that is identified as employment land. The proposal
would therefore provide additional employment opportunities within the local
area.

The application demonstrates that the principle of employment use is acceptable
and complies with Policy E3 of the UDP. The scale of the industrial development
is appropriate, demonstrating that subject to the future approval of reserved
matters, suitable access and parking can be achieved in accordance with BE1
and TP12, and a well design building in accordance with policies BE1 and E5 can
be achieved on the site.

The only outstanding matter is the submission of a suitable contaminated land
report in accordance with policies PR14 and CS23. In this particular instance it is
felt that the applicant should be given a reasonable time extension to provide this
information, before the application is determined.

It is on this basis that members are asked to delegate the final decision to the
Operational Director — Planning, Policy and Transportation in consultation with
the Chair or Vice-Chair, to enable applicant to submit and for officers to consider
an appropriate contaminated land report for this site.

RECOMMENDATIONS

a) It is therefore requested that the delegated powers are given to the
Operational Director — Policy, Planning & Transportation in consultation with
the Chair or Vice Chair of the Development Control Committee to make the
decision once the applicant has provided a satisfactory contaminated land
report.

b) Once the LPA have received this report that the application be approved
subject to the following conditions:-

1. Standard outline conditions for the submission of reserved matters
applications x 3 conditions (BE1)



Page 31

2. Plans condition listing relevant drawings i.e. site location / red edge ( BE1 and
TP17)

3. Prior to commencement the submission of a reserved matters proposal which
incorporates a full proposal for drainage of the site (BE1)

4. Prior to commencement submission of existing and proposed levels (BE1)
5. Prior to commencement submission of materials (BE1 and CS11)
6. Prior to commencement submission of hard and soft landscaping (BE1)

7. Prior to commencement submission of a construction / traffic management
plan which will include wheel cleansing details (TP17)

8. Prior to commencement details of boundary treatment (BE22)

9. Condition relating to any further site investigations required, implementation of
remediation strategy and verification (PR14 and CS23)

c) If a satisfactory contaminated land report is not received within a reasonable
time scale, the application will be refused for non-compliance with the National
Planning Policy Framework, policy PR14 ‘Contaminated Land’ of the Unitary
Development Plan and CS23 ‘Pollution and Risk’ of the Core Strategy.

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

As required by:
» Paragraph 186 — 187 of the National Planning Policy Framework;

« The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(England) (Amendment No.2) Order 2012; and

« The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Amendment)
(England) Regulations 2012.

This statement confirms that the local planning authority has worked proactively
with the applicant to secure developments that improve the economic, social and
environmental conditions of Halton.



Page 32

APPLICATION NO:

15/00395/FUL

LOCATION: 117 Highfield Road, Widnes
PROPOSAL.: Proposed dropped kerb and formation of singular vehicular
access
WARD: Kingsway
PARISH: None
CASE OFFICER: Adam Brennan
AGENT(S) Carley Stockton
APPLICANT(S): 117 Highfield Road
Widnes
WAS8 7DH
DEVELOPMENT Halton Unitary Development Plan (2005)
PLAN ALLOCATION:
DEPARTURE No
REPRESENTATIONS: | No objections
KEY ISSUES: Highway Safety
Access to property
RECOMMENDATION: | Approve
SITE MAP

1. APPLICATION SITE

1.1 The Site

The application relates to an end of terrace property located on Highfield
Road, off Birchfield Road in the Farnworth area of Widnes. The dwelling has
a small curtilage to the side (see location plan) currently laid out as a garden.




Page 33

2. THE APPLICATION

2.1The Proposal
The application proposes the dropping of the kerb to create a vehicular

access to the property at the side to provide off road parking.

2.2Documentation
The application has been submitted with the requisite planning application
form and location plan highlighting location of dropped kerb.

2.3 History
No relevant planning history.

3. POLICY CONTEXT

3.1Halton Core Strategy (2012)
e Policy CS18 — High Quality Design

3.2Halton Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (2005)
e Policy BE1 — General Requirements for Development
e Policy BE2 — Quality of Design

4. CONSULTATIONS

4.1 Highways
The Council’'s Highway Service was consulted as part of the consultation

exercise. No objection was raised to the provision of a single dropped kerb,
commenting that there was minimal impact on highway safety.

5. REPRESENTATIONS
Adjoining neighbours were consulted as part of the consultation exercise on
the application. There have been no representations received for this
application.

6. ASSESSMENT
The proposal is for a single dropped kerb at 117 Highfield Road, Widnes to
access a vehicle driveway across the footpath. As the amount of physical
development proposed is minimal, the main issues to consider are the safety
of pedestrians on the footpath and preservation of road user safety.

The property is located on a highway junction, but the proposed driveway
access itself is set away from the junction itself. As the property is on the left
hand side of the road and Highfield Road is straight in this section, adequate
visibility is available to drivers using the driveway.

From a highway safety perspective, the driveway would ensure off street
parking at the property, securing a space where double yellow lines are in
place on the carriageway. Lowering the kerb is considered minor works and
does not impact significantly on the street scene. The minor nature of the
works results in little impact on the appearance of the dwelling. The new



Page 34

driveway is sufficient in size to accommodate a vehicle without encroaching
onto the footpath or highway.

The Highways Service has raised no objection to the proposal. There have
been no neighbour objections to the proposal. It is noted that neighbouring
dwellings have similar accesses to their driveways.

In summary, the proposed dropped kerb will have a minimal impact on the
area, but will be of benefit to the property itself and other residents on
Highfield Road through the provision of an additional parking space that
means one less vehicle parked on the road in the vicinity. It is considered that
the safety of road users will not be compromised. The proposal is compliant
with policies BE1, BE2 in the Halton Unitary Development Plan and CS18 of
the Core Strategy, and therefore recommended for approval.

. RECOMMENDATIONS

Grant planning permission subject to conditions

. CONDITIONS

1. Standard 3 year expiry

. SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

As required by:
e Paragraph 186 — 187 of the National Planning Policy Framework;
e The Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (England) (Amendment No.3) Order 2015; and

This statement confirms that the local planning authority has worked
proactively with the applicant to secure developments that improve the
economic, social and environmental conditions of Halton.



)
_..__f,\.___ Development Control Committee
HALTON | 4th September 2015

BOROUGH COUNCIL




\_
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

_h

Development Control Committee

S
% \\\%& [

A

T
o
w Ve ped e | -
e in
o ! i
1 i
i ;

Plan | A: Location Plan

Application Number: 12/00100/OUT



Development Control Committee

_h_

Site Layout

Plan IB

12/00100/OUT

Application Number



_h_
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

ground floor plan

Application Number: 12/00100/OUT

Development Control Committee

first floor plan

front elevation

8¢ abed

side elevation

Plan |C: Proposed Elevations (1)




)
M\ _ .
HAL\ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

front elevation side elevation

Application Number: 12/00100/OUT Plan |D: Proposed Elevations (2)



' —N\_

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

=0

Application Number: 12/00100/O0T “Plan |D:Aerial Photograph



_ho

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

U2 s \

o Esrare

widnes Waterfron|

fBRCUGH Cf ]

Application Nuﬁqber; 15/00014/OUT Plan 2A: Location Plan




r o o
HALT \ON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

e /| e baundares

NIT ] NiT.& iIT. S

530 S 580 Sam. 50

6243 5 (TS0 R4 %7
I

' U
‘ : Q
4 P «Q
5 s o
/ //’ a PSR\ ¢ 37 8
S S ] »l W - w2 el A
W | T Y R V7 . g ;
PP { Vx, /A
s 1.
R P nl A "\
/ ! A pacY 7} :{_,,~ N Loveod ‘:OBHUbtA 50Ab

'1\(d7t

App||cat|on Number 15/00014/OUT Plan 2B: Site Layout




Development Control Committee

N\
HALTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

_h

Plan ZC:AeriaI Phofograph

T
2
O
S~~~
4
o
o
o
~
LN
wl.
Q
0
£
-]
Z
c
®)
=]
(]
O
a
(a R
<




)
M\ _ .
HALT\ON Development Control Committee

b =

ber: 15/00395/FUL

Application Num



' —N\_

HALTON Development Control Committee

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Application Number: 15/00395/FUL Plan BB Aerlal Photograph




Page 46 Agenda Item 4

REPORT TO: Development Control Committee
DATE: 14 September 2015

REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Policy & Resources
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous ltems

WARD(S): Boroughwide

The following applications have been withdrawn:

15/00326/NMA Proposed Non Material Amendment to Planning Permission
14/00667/FUL to facilitate addition of window at first floor level
on the rear elevation at 29 Cleadon Way Widnes WA8 9PD

15/00363/COU Proposed change of use from Agricultural land to domestic
curtilage at Pipistrelle Barn, Chester Road, Daresbury.

The following Appeals have been received / are in progress:

15/00202/FUL Proposed two storey rear extension at 22 Oakmore, Runcorn.
To be dealt with by written representation.

15/00034/P3JPA  Proposed conversion of office building in 448 self-contained
apartments, East Lane House, East Lane, Runcorn.

Appeal Allowed.



	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE
	1200100OUT - Heath Business Park
	1500014OUT - Cornubia Road
	1500395FUL - Highfield Road
	DC Committee Plans 2015 September

	4 MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

